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IMMANUEL EVANGELICAL LUTHERAN CONGREGATION

The early history of Immanuel LuthﬂranvCongre~
gation of Woodville, Wisconsin goes back a little far-
ther than one hundred and two vyears. In the year 1881
a number of Lutheran families of German descent began
to settle in Baldwin Townshir to carve new homes for
themselves out of the wooded wilderness. Most of these
people had come from conditions of extreme poverty in
Europe. There they had been near slaves. Here they
had the'opnortunify of becceming lords and owners of
their own lands; their own farms; and their own homes,

A few years after these German immigrants had set-
tled in Baldwin wanship the Lord moved the heart of the
Lutheran pastor of Elmwood, Wisconsin, the Rev. H, P.
Duborg, to visit this tiny eroun of Germans in order to
bring them the Word of God. Pastor Duborg was heartily
welcomed, and for some time held services in the various
homes of the pioneers, most of whom lived within walking
distance of the nlace where TImmanuel Church now stands.

By 1885 it was clear that a larger nlace of Qorship
must be found. Soon willing and generous henrts were
found. A nlot of gronnd was donated by a farmer by the

name of Hermah Welk Sr. Since most of his property was
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wooded many trees had to be cut and cleared. By
May 11, 1885, the new log church was ready for its
first service.

The little eromin ~nf Lutherans now owned their
own hruse of worshin., Strange to say, they were nnt
even orga~ized or incornorated at thst time, but that
did nnt hinder them from erecting their little churche.
To be able to worshin God in His own "'"1ize was their
first concern. Legal matters could wait antil later.
In the following years the congreg~tion was officially
orgnized and incornorated under the laws of the state
of Wisconsin. The articles of incornoration were sign-
ed December 13, 1886,

Whether in its enrly history this congregation
officially joinedrany'synodical organization is not
known. Most likely it was simnly considered a preach-
ing statiop or mission congregation of that synod by
whose pastor it was served. Most sources maint=in
that this was always the Chio Synod, that is until
1889, One of the early péstors, however, exnressed the
oninion that Immanuel was founded by the Ioﬁa Synod.
Since 1900 this congregation has been affiliated with
the Evangelical Lutheran Joint Synod of Wisconsin and
Other States.

The oldest written snurce of information regard-
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ing the »nastors wheo served Immanuel and the official
acts they performed is a "Church-Book" beegun by Pastor
F. A. Schaffnit in the year 1888, Since the onldest re-
maining minutes are dated 1293, much of ny information
must be credited to the éons and danghters of those
early church organizers.

Whether Pastor Schaffnit directlyv succeeded Pastor
Duborg is unknown. There is only one official act of
Pastor Duberg inscribed into the record, namely one bap-
tism on December 8, 1R86. The Church Record shows that
the official acts, of Pastor Schaffnit were six bantisms,
14 confirmations, 73 communion guests, one marriage, and
one funeral. A chanze in handwriting in this record
book leads one to believe that he had moved away by the
end ~f Sentember, 1889,

Thinking it to be bett~r for themselves and for
the Church, the fathers of the congregation at this time
requested a pastor of their own and made nlans to build
a house for him. Just how this was done is not shown in
the records. The plot of ground very likely was donated
by a man by the name of Georsze Gralow, kWhed all was
ready Pastor George Diemer came to live in the narson-
age and to serve the congregetion as nastor. Very likely
that was early in the year 1890.

By August of the same vear a Pastor B. Ehwald had



been installad in Diemer's »lace. Things, humanly
sneaking, did not go very well dﬂfingEhwaldﬁS nast-
nrate. Tt seens that he was Comﬁelled to take r-rher
severe action ae inst some members on =ccount of their
words or deeds; but, instead of all-wing themselves to
be admonished and to rerent, these peonle severed their
c-nnections with the congregation and formed one of iheir
own, This 2r un was ore=nized and incornornted July 22,
1893, as St. Jonns Ev. Lutheran Church. It built a
church on the other side of the section to the northeast
and rejuestad to be served by the Missouri Synod.

The resol-iti~ns nassed by the faithful remnant
in the snecial meeting of January 30, 1893, mayv contain
some hints as to what may have caused the snlit; yet
nothing is knnrwn difinitely excent thrt it was for per-
sonal and not for doctrinal reasons that the groun left
the church.

Pastor Ehwald received a call and was given a neace-
ful release during the summer of 1893, The congregation
now considerably smaller, was forced azain to be served
from a distance instead of by a resident nastor. The
Rev. W. L. Keller of Afton, Minnesota, was called to
serve them. Every three weeks he came to condict service.
Soon new members came to join the coneregntion. By the

following year they were arain interested and enthusiastic
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enough about their church to cover the outside with
siding. Pastor Keller served until 1895, when in the
anni=l mecting of January 7 it was a2gain decided to
call a resident nastor.,

Pastor George Fendler accented the congregat on's
call and by March of the same vear he w»s living in
the n~arsonage. This nart of the nroperty was consider-
ably imnroved during his nastorate. Additinnal land
was donated so that the nastor could grow his own veg-
etables., Pastor Fendler renained only until *ay of the
following year.

The congregation's next c21l traveled all the way
to Germany to be delivered to Candidate Ed Schlagdenhaufen.,
He returned at once and brought with him his y~ung bride
from Strassburg. ‘Under Pastor Schlagdenhaufen a new
.church building had been erected to renlaece the old one.
Pastor Schlagdenhaufen, to the dismay of the conere-
gation, took a call before the church could be dedica-
ted. This left wany of the members down in the mouth.
Now they had a beautiful building but no nastor ae2in.
To make matters wnrse the Qhto: Svnod decided that Immaniel
could be served best by the neighboring nastor in Aftnn,
Minnesnta. It was decided for them that they needed no
resident nastor.

God, however, wused this onportunity to bring to »nass

the things He had in mind for Immanuel. He used this



occasion to bring the neonle to seek service from a
different synnd in the hope that though Ohio did

not want to serve them, maybe snme other synnd ight,
The Wisconsin Synod granted them a nastor. [U was
Pastor H. Wnlter, whn wes ordained and installed on
February 1, 1900, It is under Pastor Wnlter th=t

the break-off congregation, St. John's once again
united itself with Immanuel, due teo the fact that
Imnanuel had joined the Wisconsin Svnod and now
there were nn doctrinal differences. The new church
was n~w filled regularily and often bevond canacity.
God once again had shown magnificent grace to His
sheen~ at Imaanuel. On Anril 10, 197%%, Pastor Wolter
accented a call to Lomira, Wisconsin. Through the
groce of Gnd his nastorate was trily blessed in those
four yenrs.

On August 4, 1904, Pasor F. Zarling was ordained
and installed by Prof. John Meyer., During his nastorate
the congregation realized that the parsonage was inad-
euate both by location and size. Therefore on May 12,
1906 it was resolved to buy 144 square rods of addition-
al land fro Harry wWelk and to build a narsonage on
this property. By the 7th of October, 1906, the narsonage
was comnleted., Pasot Zarling lived two more yenars in the

nmarsonage and then took a call.



Tn Nove ber of 1908 Pastor Wm. Fischer had been
instlled in Zarling's »lace. Under Pastor ischer a
school house was built. Pastor Fischer served T manuel
until the vear 1913 and then accerted a call.

Pastor V. E. Schroeder was installed in Pastor
Fischers nlace. It was during his tine that the first
Eneiish service was held. Tt was Aalso decided that
Enclish be nised everv Sunday Ifro: thst time on.

Diiring Pastor Schroeder's vears at Inmanuel several
im~rovenents took nlace, such as, the cementing of the
~arsonage cellar; the installation of lightning rods
on the church;,the ~ainting of the buildings; and
finally the shingling of the church roof. Pastor
Schroeder's farwell sermon was nreached December

15, 1918.

Pastor J. Gehm accented the congregation's call.
He was installed February 2, 1919. It was during
Pastor Gehm's firet year that the custom of having
several collectors'receive the donations for the
nastor's salary was introduced. Also during Pastor
Gehm's years at Immanuel the unstairs of the narsnnage
received a new floor and a nineless furnace was in-
stalled., Pastor Gehm nreached his farewell sermnn
Cctober 16, 1928,

Pastor M. C. Michaels of Henry, S. D., accented
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the c~11 of the crnereentidn. The main imhrovement
durine his n=storate was pntting the basement under
the chiurch. This undertaking almost nroved disas-
trous in more w ys than one. A storm tinped the church
while it was s im-orted nnlyv bv dacks and caused a ereat
deal ~f damagze. There was extensive damage to the floor
to the point that it couldn't be saved. The statne
of Christ in the altar was broken and the chandeliers
were smashed. Both of these items needed renlace-
ment. This disaster and nther events that followed
nroved to be a very severe test of the temnner and love
of the neonle. For some yeﬁrs Pastor Michaels suffered
from a heart ailment. On one Sunday morning he co-
lansaed durine the sermon. After he repgained conscious-
ness, he finished his sermon, The same night he suf-
fered a severe attack and fell asleen in the Lord three
hours later. Funeral services were held March 28, 1939.
He was buried in Juneau, Wisconsin, the next days

After a long vacancy Pastor E, M. Schroeder
accented the call to serve Immanuel as their shenherd.
In 1940 the church was painted and eaves troughs and down-
smouts installed. An oil heater was nurchvsed for the
church to hent the building better on those cold Sundays
of January and Februsry. Pastor Schroeder nreached his far-

well sermon May 2, 1943,



June 13, of the same year Pastor Im. Bade was
ordnained and installed as pastor. During his nastorate
Immanuel declared itself self-sunnorting. In 1944 the
Board of Trustees took a giant sten in the bullding
~roeramn by installing a bathroom in the parscnage.

The following yenr the crngreg-tion remodeled the

T

kitchen. 1In May of the same yenr birds decided to
b1ild a nest in the chimnev of the church. When the
stoves were lit to hent the church for service, an
exnlosion resulted. Worshin had to be copducted in the
basenent, and the interior of the church needed to

be refinished.

In October of the same year Pastor Bade accented
a call to Red Lake Falls, Minnesota. He nreached his
farewell ser nn on October 30th. Later that yeary, during
the vacancy the ccngreg:ti~n nurchased a Minshall-Estey orean
to beautifv its services.

Pastor Werner, formerly of the Centuria-Rock Creek
narsonage,was installed January 20, 1949, The years of
his nastorste were peacefnl and calm.

Pastor Paul E Horn of Ixonia, Wisconsin was installed
a5 the nastor of Immenuel after Werner had left. Pastor
Horn was installed on Sunday, October 28, 1951. Because
of =n ailment Pastor !lorn was granted a three. month leave
of absence beginning in December of 1951. In March of
1952 Hle returned seeminaly reccvered and ready to take

sim hia wmrl ance apsin at Tomanmel.  But in the fall of



1954, it becmme annarent that his healrh failed him
asain, yvet he crntinued to serve the church under the
constant care of a nhysician until the month of
February of the following ye r. Since that time, Feb.
13, he becn e confined to his bed until he quietly fell
asleen non “arch 13, in the narsonage.

Pastor A, G. Schubring accented the call to
Immanuel in Pastor iorn's nl=ce. lle served Immanuel
for two vears. There w=s not ~uch that took nlace
out of the norral during these two years. Evervthing was
calm and »eaceful, there were no maijor building ~ro-
grais.,

Fol ow' ng Pastor Schubring Immanuel did not ex-
rerience a long vacancy. They extended a czhl for a
candidate of the ministry through the call committee
of Svnod., They received as their next n»nastor Glenway
Backis who was installed on J.lyv 7, 1957. During
his mastorate the congregation voted to celebrate
Lord's Sunper once a month. As a result eof this
decision the average times that each communicant
nartook of the Sacrament doubled. Pastor Backus
nreached his farewell sermon on January 8, 1961.

On May 3, 1961, the members of Immanuel issued
a call to Pastor H. A. Pankow, whn had been serving them
as interim nastor. He accented the call and was instal-

ied on Jnnd 18th. Pastor Pankow served Immane! from
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1961-1968, He died on Christmas Eve 1968, sh-rtly
before the service, fr-m a heart attack.

Pastoryyoller was extended the call and sefved
Immanuel from 1969-1972, During his nastorate, the
narsonare wss given a much needed remodeling. The
norch w:s remodeled, rooms naneled, and shower rlaced
iin the bathroom. Pastor Woller took a call in 1972 to
Zi~n, East Farmington, just 30 miTes frem Woodville.

William Kirchner served from 1973-1979, He cnme
right from the Seminary. The Lord-blessed [mmanuel under
Kirchner. The congregation needed some stability,
and he stayed for 6 years. During his nastorate, the
matter of building a new church was brought un. By
a close vote, the members decided not to build.

Pastor Kirchner took a call to Ringle, Wisconsin in
1979,

Douglas Schalrw, a Seminary graduate, served
Imnanuel from 1979-1981. He resigned in 1981 bec-use of
nersonal problems.

James Sch'mann a graduate of the Seminary class
of 1981 received the call in Schalow's nlace. During
Pastor Schumann's short time at Iﬂmqnueljso fag a new
hot water tank and »umn have been installed. Also a
concrete slab and fence have been erected in the back
yard of the narsonage,in the area of the old outhouse,

as a ren for Pastor Schumann's dog, Luther. So far
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Pastor Schumann's nastorate has been caln and neacefnil.
This conclindes my Church History narer. This
narer will be '1sed for the 100th centennial of Tmmanuel

which will take ~lace in 1986,



